### **Lancashire County Council**

### **Corporate Parenting Board**

Minutes of the Meeting held on Thursday, 4th August, 2016 at 1.30 pm in Cabinet Room 'C' - The Duke of Lancaster Room, County Hall, Preston

### Present: Members

County Councillor - Cabinet Member for Children, Young People Matthew Tomlinson and Schools

County Councillor - Lancashire County Council

Lorraine Beavers

County Councillor - Lancashire County Council Margaret Brindle

County Councillor Ian - Lancashire County Council

Brown

County Councillor - Lancashire County Council Dorothy Lord

County Councillor Sue - Lancashire County Council

Prynn (Chair)
County Councillor - Lancashire County Council
Cynthia Dereli

Jane Simpson - representing Foster Carers
Catherine - representing Adoption

Paige - LINX
Charlotte - LINX
Sam R - LINX
Bradley - LINX
Sam W - LINX

### **Co-opted members**

Diane Booth - Children's Social Care

Kate Baggaley - Barnardos
Debbie Nolan-Plunkett - Barnardos

Susan Towers - Agency Residential

### Other Attendees

Kirsty Clarke - Lancashire Children's Rights Society

Sam Gorton (Clerk) - Democratic Services, LCC

Reni Hall - Barnardos Kerry Haslam - Barnardos

Anna Howarth - Lancashire Care Foundation Trust - Lancashire Care Foundation Trust

Thomas Redfearn - Children's Rights Society

Kady - POWAR

Evie - POWAR William - POWAR Kora - POWAR Courtney - POWAR - POWAR Emma - POWAR Rosie - POWAR Matthew - POWAR Kirsten

### 1. Icebreaker

As this was a young person's meeting, the Chair for the meeting was Charlotte.

Charlotte welcomed POWAR (Lancashire County Council's participation group for children and young people with special educational needs and disabilities) who joined LINX (Lancashire's Children in Care Council) to receive their Diana Award certificates and to feedback on some exciting collaborative work that has been going on in Lancashire.

Evie introduced the icebreaker, where the Board were asked to highlight their Country's identity, be it real or imaginary which encouraged people to think about the following qualities:

- Pulling together
- Every person in the team plays a crucial role
- Team leadership
- Discipline
- Motivation
- Talent
- Hard work
- Support and encouragement
- Trust
- Dealing with set backs
- Learning from the experts

Each group came up with imaginary countries and detailed their reasoning behind the names they had come up with.

The countries were as follows:

- Peaceful Island
- Gold Fogia
- Happy Winners
- Wonderland

### 2. What Have LINX Been Doing

Bradley then informed the Board on what LINX had been doing since the last Corporate Parenting Board meeting.

The powerpoint that Bradley designed is attached detailing all LINX' activities.

### **Children's Rights Alliance for England (CRAE)**

Feedback on exciting work that the CRAE had been doing was given by William who has been part of the steering group called See it, Say it, Change it, since January 2015. Mark from the LINX group is also a member.

Last year they carried out research and worked on writing a report about how children's rights are not being respected in the UK. They covered issues such as standard of living, children in care, health and education. In October, they went to the United Nations in Geneva to present the report to the Committee on the rights of the child. Since then they have met with Edward Timpson, MP twice to discuss the recommendations which have made and has agreed to meet with the group twice a year.

This year they have been on two residentials. On the last one, they all voted on a particular issue to focus their campaign work on. They decided that the issue would be housing, as many children and families are being housed in poor and overcrowded accommodation. They will continue to meet up regularly to work on this issue ad they are also going to be looking for ten more young people to join the group.

### North West Regional Children in Care Conference

Charlotte informed the Board about the North West Regional Children in Care Conference which took place at County Hall in Preston on Saturday, 2 July 2016.

There were approximately sixty children and young people aged from 10 to 23 years.

They covered Children in Care Councils from Blackburn and Darwen, Blackpool, Bolton, Bury, Cumbria, Halton, Lancashire, Liverpool, Manchester, Oldham, Rochdale, Salford, Stockport, Tameside, Trafford, Wirral, and Wigan.

There were four workshops running on the day.

- 1. The Children's Commissioners' workshop called share and learn was to explore and draw out from the children and young people the questions that they hoped the Children in Care Council website page would address.
- 2. Lancashire ran a workshop explaining their campaign work around raising awareness of the pupil premium plus grants.
- 3. Trafford ran a workshop around the use of technology and social media.
- 4. Youth Focus North West ran a workshop around entitlements for care leavers.

### The main themes that emerged from the children and young people were:

- 1. Wanting to know their rights and what they are entitled to at a national, local and individual level.
- 2. Better communication on their individual cases.
- 3. Understanding the care system as well as jargon and the language that can be used by professionals.

This was the first regional conference that the Children's Commissioner, Anne Longfield had attended. She stayed all day to answer individual questions and inform young people about her plans to help support Looked After Children and Care Leavers. She was interested in knowing the answers to the following questions:

- a) What is the best thing about being part of a children in care council?
- b) Why is it important to listen to children in care?
- c) What do you think about getting together today?

### Answers included:

"Being part of a Children in Care Council gives me a voice to improve my own life and other children and young people's".

"I enjoy getting together with other children and young people in similar circumstances".

"It's important to listen to children in care because we are the experts in our own right as we experience what it is like every day".

"We feel more in control of own lives when listened to".

"Being part of a Children inCare Council helps to create a sense of citizenship and being part of a community. It feels good to be able to make things better for others in similar situations".

All the feedback from the day was very positive. The children and young people particularly liked hearing from each other and taking ideas back to their own Children in Care Councils.

The next North West Regional Children in Care Council is taking place in Knowsley in November. LINX are meeting up with Knowsley's Children in Care Council on the 18 August 2016 to help to plan this conference.

### 3. Council Tax and Care Leavers

County Councillor Prynn gave an update on what had happened since the last CPB meeting. A Notice of Motion had been presented at Full Council on 21 July 2016 and all Councillors were supportive of the motion for Council Tax Exemption

up to the age of 25 years for Care Leavers. A letter will now be sent to Central Government urging them to amend the Children and Social Work Bill that is currently being considered by Parliament to reflect this. Lancashire MPs will also be written to seeking their support to any such amendment to the Bill. Jo Turton, the Council's Chief Executive, will be asked to write to District Councils within the council to urge them to introduce a Council Tax Exemption for care leavers within their jurisdictions.

Thomas Redfearn from the Children's Society was welcomed to the meeting, and he gave some background on what he had been doing across the Country with regards Council Tax Exemption for Care Leavers. He gave feedback that the work of the CPB in Lancashire was in the top five Authorities in the Country which was very positive. Those Councils who have implemented Council Tax Exemption(or publicly stated they would) are:

- North Somerset
- Cheshire East
- Stockport
- Birmingham (have committed to implementing it from next April)

Thomas was very pleased that Lancashire had agreed to take it forward also.

The Board then split into groups to work on a paragraph to be inserted in the letter that young people would send to District Councils asking them to make Care Leavers exempt from Council Tax up to the age of 25. It was noted that District Councils should be reminded that they are also Corporate Parents too. Young people were also encouraged to write to their own District Councils individually as well.

LINX collected the suggestions and a final draft of the letter would be sent to CC Prynn and Thomas Redfearn for comments.

**Action:** LINX to send a copy of the final draft letter to CC Prynn and Thomas Redfearn for comments.

Thomas also said that there was a new Care Leavers Strategy called Keep on Caring which the Government have produced. It gives a detailed breakdown of what a Care Leaver should expect when leaving care. Some members of LINX influenced the strategy when they went down to Parliament.

Children's Society are also keen to do a lot more work around mental health and for CAMHS to include care leavers as a priority group.

Thomas was thanked for his attendance.

### 4. Young Inspectors

Sam R presented his young inspectors slideshow that he had designed on The Hawthorns Residential Unit. The presentation is attached. The Young Inspectors visited the Unit in October 2015 and then revisited it in May 2016.

Sam told the Board that being a young inspector requires you to have good skills of observation so that you can spot things that staff or young people may not be telling you. He then tested the Boards skills of observation by showing a short film and asking 10 questions on it afterwards.

The Board then split into two groups and a young inspector joined each of the groups where members of the Board asked them questions on their experiences of carrying out the visits and looked at some examples of the young inspectors' reports that they had carried out.

### 5. SEND Collaborative Workshop

Emma, Rosie and Evie from POWAR gave feedback from the SEND Together workshop which was held on 2 July 2016.

Links to the two films as shown at the meeting are below. The first was made before the first workshop in June to explain the purpose of the workshop and the second film was made after the workshop had taken place to inform young people and adults about what had taken place.

### Film 1:

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=I-tEIBCH4Pc&feature=youtu.be

### Film 2:

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Lj1bkjo0SKs

In Lancashire, children, young people, parent carers and those who deliver services for children and young people with special educational needs and disabilities, are starting their journey to work together.

On the 2nd June 2016 #Sendtogether launched this journey, a journey that is innovative, exciting and challenging - as it is a brand new way of working.

There are challenges on this journey and Lancashire know that they will not be able to give everyone all that they want, but they want to make a difference to the future of children and young people with special educational needs and disabilities in Lancashire.

At the first workshop the discussions and activities produced the following four steps needed for this journey to be successful.

1. **Engage** – this means involving everyone to develop services in the right place at the right time.

- 2. **Listen** time must be spent listening to what people want so that services are not wasted on things that are not needed. We need to make sure everyone has an equal voice and is heard.
- 3. **Participate** we need to work as a team and make sure collaboration is done equally with everyone involved.
- 4. **Co-produce** by building on what we know and using people's energy, experience and knowledge to shape our services.

By everyone working together, children, young people and their families will get the right support at the right time. This will be achieved by looking at what services there are now and building on this to make a better future.

A new strategy will be implemented, but this will be challenging as there are limited resources.

#SENDtogether brings children and young people, parents and carers, to be involved in influencing plans for SEND services together - and the next steps are to invite along people from services that support young people with Education, Health and Care plans.

This will include the people who decide where the funding goes, those from the places and services that the young people use, and also those who they look up to inspire them.

Our four promises from the first day are that we will:

- 1. include everybody
- 2. spread the word in a range of ways
- 3. share success
- 4. use any lessons learnt

The next steps are:

**Step one** - The SEND together group is going to provide a voice for parents, carers and young people in influencing the plans for SEND during the coming year.

**Step two** –This new way of working will be evaluated after the next two workshops.

**Step three** – Young people's participation will be supported through POWAR.

**Step four** –The Lancashire Parent Carer Forum and their role in the workshop will be included going forward.

**Step five** - POWAR will present progress to Lancashire County Council senior officers and Councillors.

**Step six** – Ground rules will be adopted going forward.

The next workshop will be in November.

### 6. Diana Award

CC Tomlinson presented LINX and POWAR with their Diana Award which they had been nominated for. The inspection teams are made up of 15 inspirational young people who have collectively volunteered over a hundred hours of their time to carry out inspections.

Over the last three years the young inspectors have visited many Lancashire County Council (LCC) residential homes, private residential homes, LCC and private fostering agencies and other services for children and young people.

The Board congratulated the young people on this fantastic achievement.

### 7. Evaluation

Everybody was asked to fill in an evaluation form from the meeting on what they liked about the meeting and what they would like to see at the next meeting from young people?

The results are attached.

### 8. Date and Time of Next Meeting

Thursday, 8 September 2016 at 6.00pm (refreshments served from 5.30pm) in the Duke of Lancaster Room (formerly Cabinet Room 'C'), County Hall, Preston, PR1 8RJ.







# What LINX Have Been Doing.... June – August 2016...







LINX media group have met to write the latest e-newsletter that is sent to professionals and young people

Newsletter









raising standards improving lives

# 5 members of LINX attended a Post Ofsted Improvement Meeting with Lancashire County Council







### LINX members have attended a Lancashire Youth Council Meeting









Work with Uclan on Stories 2
Connect continues, with young people collecting stories from other young people with experience of foster care











### 4 Care Leavers have helped to deliver training to personal advisors in 3 venues across Lancashire









### LINX hosted a North West Regional Conference for Children in Care Councils









14 Local Authorities attended including Liverpool, Knowsley, Trafford, Stockport, Oldham, Rochdale, Blackburn, Blackpool, Cumbria, Halton, Manchester, Salford, Wigan and Wirral







Children's Commisisoner opened the event alongside our own Callum and stayed for the day attending workshops and listening to the issues raised









10 members of LINX have participated in interviews for the local authority for social workers, independent reviewing officers and support workers for fostering and adoption service







In recent interviews the young people have trialled a speed dating approach with candidates which has been very successful







### 6 Care Leavers and County Councillor Beavers attended a day at Borwick Hall to look at redesigning the local authority website









### Fostering meeting at Burnley Youth Zone









## One member of LINX attended a residential trip in partnership with the Children's Rights Alliance for England









### Young Inspectors have met up to write 3 reports









### THANKS FOR WATCHING











### THE HAWTHORNS FIRST VISIT

### Hawthorns Care Home, Lancaster ROC North West Report

### The aim of Youth inspections:

To develop a set of recommendations about how a service can improve. These recommendations should be based on speaking to staff and young people in the service - and should be prioritised by identifying both important and easy to achieve improvements. It is important that the rationale for these recommendations is explained and they are revisited by Young Inspectors at a fixed point in the future to see if the service has been successful in implementing them.

Young Inspectors will not pass judgement / grade/ merit a service because all services could be improved. Information has been gathered through talking to service users and staff about how a service could be improved.

### Methodology:

### Pre Inspection Question:

'We would like to understand a bit about you before we meet you including your background, your vision for young people and how you improve life for them. We would also like to know how you do the work you do and where. Please tell us this information on one side of A4. How you present the info is up to you but pictures and colour are always nice!'

### Info taken from website:

The Hawthorns is one of our newest additions at ROC Northwest, but is already making a big difference to our young people's lives.

The Hawthorns, offers residential care for 4 children between the ages of 8 and 18. Specially adapted to the needs of children with Social Emotional and Behavioural difficulties. Our Young People are treat with the appropriate resect and treated as individuals with person centred planning. Our 'firm but fair'

### Recommendations

- To look at Participation activities which the young people can join to give them a voice with regards to being a looked after child.
- ❖ To look at improving the independence of all of the young people within the home rather than when they reach a certain age.
- ❖ To keep the ethos and nature of the care home as one which is fun and the young people enjoy living at.

Please feel free to contact LINX Young Inspectors on 01772 629470. The Young Inspectors will be in touch again in 6-9 months' time to see if their recommendations have been implemented.

THIS IS THE VISIT THAT WE DID TO THE HAWTHORNS CARE HOME IN LANCASTER IN OCTOBER 2015 AND WE SET THEM 3 WELL-THOUGHT RECOMMENDATIONS (THE FULL REPORT WILL BE ON YOUR DESK FOR YOU TO READ).

### THE STAFF RESPONSES

Questions to staff:

What are the aims of Hawthorns?

Some responses from the staff:

'The aims in a nut shell are to give the young people we look after positive outcomes.'

How do you prioritise what your service does/What have you prioritised?

Some responses from the staff:

'Well it is all person centred so it depends on what the child needs and where they are going, the the aims that they have and that they coincide with the aims of the home which is obviously to to support the child in a safe environment, to thrive and achieve.'

'They are all equal in a way, they all get the same amount of attention, but if there was anything anything that needed more serious attention, whatever that might be that would take the priority priority at that time. In a minute to win it type of thing, if Jake is going to jump out of the window then that becomes our priority rather than something else.'

How do you continually improve what Hawthorns provides /what do you want to improve?

Some responses from the staff:

'We have a lot of paperwork which we use progression files, which you can see up there. Each of of the kids has targets or goals on a daily basis which are, if they are met then they are updated updated and they are set new goals which are a bit more difficult to achieve. Therefore they strive to achieve that one hopefully, and succeed. Then we go round again. There is a reward system so they achieve their daily objectives then they gain a bit of money for doing so. This is all

### THE STAFF RESPONSES CONT.

### HOW DO YOU LISTEN TO YOUNG PEOPLE?

SOME RESPONSES FROM THE STAFF:

WELL THE MAIN ONE REALLY FOR US IS THAT WE HAVE KEY WORKER SESSIONS, WHAT WE CALL A KEY WORKER SESSION. SO THAT GIVES THEM A CHANCE TO SIT DOWN WITH US INDIVIDUALLY OR ANY MEMBER OF STAFF AND HAVE A SAY IN WHAT THEY WANT TO HAVE A SAY. WHAT THEY WANT, WHAT THEY LIKE, WHAT THEY DISLIKE AND THE SAME GOES FOR US.'

'WE ALSO HAVE A YOUNG PERSON'S MEETING EVERY WEEK, SO EVERYBODY SITS DOWN TOGETHER AND SAYS IF THERE IS ANYTHING THEY WANT, WHAT THEY LIKE, WHAT THEY DON'T LIKE, ANY ACTIVITIES THEY WANT TO DO. THEY WILL BRING IT UP IN THESE MEETINGS. ANYTHING THAT THEY WANT TO SAY REALLY."

### THE YOUNG PEOPLE'S RESPONSES

### QUESTIONS TO YOUNG PEOPLE: WHAT DO YOU DO WITH YOUR HAWTHORNS WORKERS?

SOME RESPONSES FROM THE YOUNG PEOPLE:

### WOULD YOU RECOMMEND HAWTHORNS TO OTHER CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE IN CARE? WHY?

SOME RESPONSES FROM THE YOUNG PEOPLE:

'BECAUSE IT'S LIKE A GOOD HOME AND THEY CARE FOR YOU REALLY WELL.'
'AND YOU HAVE FUN.'

'YEAH, IT'S REALLY GOOD, IT'S FUN. THEY LET YOU DO STUFF, THEY CARE FOR YOU REALLY, REALLY WELL AND THEY ARE JUST NICE AND PLUS YOU GET SATURDAY NIGHT TAKE ALWAYS!'

### DO THE STAFF AT HAWTHORNS ENABLE YOU TO BECOME MORE INDEPENDENT?

SOME RESPONSES FROM THE YOUNG PEOPLE:

'YES. WHEN YOU TURN 13, 14 THEY START GETTING YOU ALARM CLOCKS AND YOU HAVE TO GET YOURSELF UP.'

'WE ARE NOT BEING INDEPENDENT YET BECAUSE WE ARE NOT OLD ENOUGH.'
'14 THAT'S WHEN THAT HAPPENS.'

### THE YOUNG PEOPLE RESPONSES CONT.

### HOW DO YOU KNOW YOU ARE BEING LISTENED TO?

SOME RESPONSES FROM THE YOUNG PEOPLE:

'BECAUSE THEY WILL WRITE IT DOWN AND THEY WILL FEED IT
BACK IN THE MEETINGS. YOU'VE BEEN TO ONE. I HAVEN'T BEEN TO
ONE, I'VE ONLY BEEN HERE A WEEK. BUT WHEN THEY GO TO A
MEETING, THEY WILL WRITE STUFF DOWN AND THEN YOU KNOW YOU
HAVE BEEN LISTENED TO BECAUSE IF THEY GO TO THE MEETING
AND THEY SAY WHAT YOU HAVE SAID IN YOUR MEETINGS.'



### Questions to Young People:

### What sort of Participation activities are you involved in? Any groups or organisations?

Some responses from the young people:

Animation workshop, Energi, lazer quest, go-karting, football. Like Energi, rugby, football – all sports, go-karting etc. Kick boxing at <u>Kaizer</u> Gym and muscle Alley in Preston. Library.

### Do you feel that your voice is heard with what you want to do and what you want to be involved in?

Some responses from the young people:

Yes I do.

Yes, our voice gets heard when we need to suggest something Yes and in the young peoples meeting. Yes when we have the kids meeting

### Can you give any examples?

Some responses from the young people:

When I ask if I can do something I more often than not get to do it. If we need something.

Young people's meeting and key worker.

### What sort of things do you do to help with your independence? Some responses from the young people:

Shopping, laundry, gardening, cooking, house cleaning. Food shopping, clean bedroom, household jobs. I used to do my own shopping, make my own transport. I do my own shopping, my own laundry, my own banking.

### Do you have fun and enjoy living here?

Some responses from the young people:

Sometimes

Yes, I love it.

Yes.

Yes.

### Questions to staff:

### What sort of Participation activities are the young people encouraged to become involved in? Any groups or organisations?

Some responses from the staff:

So, basically you want to know what they do. We have one that goes to kick boxing that a group activity, but he does go there on his own, so he has made new friends by doing this. They do a lot of this new place energy in Preston. We do all kinds; we have been to Cadburys world. Edan camp, so they have learnt about the war and prisoners of war as well. I'm trying to think, what I have done with them. We have mentioned scouts before, but they were not very interested in it. We had one young person, he might have been here the last time you visited, he was at air cadets, but he has now moved on to a different place. So they don't really do anything like that to be honest.

### Do you feel that the voice of the young people is heard with what they want to do be involved in?

Some responses from the staff:

Yes definitely, because they make all the suggestions and whatever they suggest we can see if we can put them in place for them.

### Can you give any examples?

Some responses from the staff:

The young person who wanted to start kick boxing, he really wanted to do something, so we had to search everywhere to find somewhere that was suitable for him, because they find it hard to fit in, they think that everyone is looking funny at them, so he has chosen this place all by himself. He is the only one really, that wants to do anything, rather than sitting down, watching television.

### What sort of things do you do to help with the young people's independence?

Some responses from the staff:

We have an independence programme set up for one young person already, who is 18 years old. He does his own shopping, his own washing, and his own drying. So he is taking responsibility for his own

### RESPONSES FROM YOUNG INSPECTORS - HAWTHORNS

### Concluding statement from the Young Inspectors:

The Recommendations that we set for this business were achieved from the overall view of what feedback that we got from both Staff and YP.

The one that was most obvious was when we set them a target to make the building overall a better and more fun place to live in and make it a safer environment to live in and even though the young people were a bit lazy on their answers it was clear that they were wanting to emphasise how they think that the business is going and if they are wanting to stay there for as long as they need to.

The staff themselves said that they were keen to get more involved in what they think is appropriate to the age levels of most of the residents that live within the home. Also, the young people seem to show that they had learnt new skills and knew what type of things that they needed to learn for when they reach their independence which for some residents was drawing near and they were getting more and more worried that they wouldn't know what to do when they left to go and live by themselves.

The things that they wanted to learn was how to; Pay bills, Shopping, Cook, Clean, Get a job etc. The majority of them were things that are basic and we had a talk with the staff and said that it was important that they knew how to look after themselves and make sure that they can live in a safe and non-guided environment.

We would like to thank the young people and the staff at The Hawthorns for their time and for allowing us to come to visit.

Please feel free to contact LINX Young Inspectors on 01772 629470. Thank you LINX Young Inspectors

THIS IS THE RESPONSE FROM TWO OF THE YOUNG INSPECTORS THAT WENT TO INSPECT THE HAWTHORNS AND SUMMARISED WHETHER OR NOT THEY THOUGHT THAT THEY HAD MET THE RECOMMENDATIONS THAT THEY SET FOR THE CARE HOME AND IF THE STAFF AND YOUNG PEOPLE AGREED THAT THEY THINK THE GENERAL WELL-BEING OF THE HOME AND RELATIONSHIPS HAVE IMPROVED GREATLY SINCE THE LAST VISIT AND IF THEY HOPE TO SUSTAIN THIS FOR THE FORESEEABLE FUTURE.

### **Evaluation of Corporate Parenting Board – 4th August 2016**

### What did you like about the meeting?

- Young people involvement
- Excellent chairperson- well done! And great presentations from all young people. Good to find out about local activities that you have been part of. Good activities.
- I enjoyed the meeting today as it was led by young people and they delivered the information well.
- Young people's participation
- The knowledge of adults and what's going on. Positivity!
- Everything! Very useful and entertaining
- The awards and the buffet
- I liked it all
- I like to see people at the meeting
- Young people led are the best!
- The relaxed and inclusive atmosphere. The positive mood.
- Talking to people who I haven't spoken to before.
- The ice breakers
- Talking to people and going out to talk out loud and I have not done that before.
- Everything... you are awesome ©
- Brilliant to see YP taking control of the meeting and actions. Brought participation to life for me. Thank you!
- Great ideas and activities to encouragement and engagement. / Different styles of presentation, well done it was excellent.
- That we got our awards and had a buffet.
- YP led. / Excellent work regarding the council tax exemption.
- Participation from all members / YP led fantastic! / Charlotte chaired the meeting brilliantly!
- It was fun and involved everyone. Charlotte did really well chairing ©
- Timely. Charlotte chaired very well. Informal but informative. Matthews's art work was impressive.
- To learn about all work yp have been involved in.
- Everyone involved

### What would you like to see at the next meeting from young people?

- More Games
- An announcement about council / Tax exemption! / Positive, inspiring case studies
- It would be nice to have feedback from today's meeting from them as to how they felt today went
- Less time, the meeting is too long
- More mixing around of young people equally
- More audience participation
- More people up
- Just the same
- ---
- · Young people should take control of all corporate parenting meetings!
- More of the same
- More fun activities. Some games
- More ice breakers
- More fun and some games
- Egg Mayo sandwiches
- ---
- To continue representing young people in Lancashire in such a positive pro-active way.
- Seeing more young people come up.
- More professionals to attend.
- ---
- ---
- ---
- More activities
- Just the same.